Public Document Pack

Your ref:
Our ref:
Enquiries to: Lesley Little
Email: lesley.little@northumberland.gov.uk
Tel direct: 01670 622614
Date: Monday, 26 July 2021
Dear Sir or Madam,
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE to be
held in Committee Room 1, County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF on TUESDAY,
3 AUGUST 2021 at 4.00 PM
Yours faithfully

Daljit Lally
Chief Executive
To Strategic Planning Committee members as follows:C Ball, L Darwin, R Dodd, B Flux, J Foster, G Hill, JI Hutchinson, J Lang, J Reid,
G Renner-Thompson, M Robinson (Vice-Chair), G Stewart, M Swinbank, T Thorne
(Chair), A Wallace and A Watson

Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this virtual meeting live
on our YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV. Members of
the press and public may tweet, blog etc during the live broadcast as they would be able
to during a regular Committee meeting.
Members are referred to the risk assessment, previously circulated, for meetings held in
County Hall. Masks should be worn when moving around but can be removed when
seated, social distancing should be maintained, hand sanitiser regularly used and
members requested to self-test twice a week at home, in line with government
guidelines.

Daljit Lally, Chief Executive
County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF
T: 0345 600 6400
www.northumberland.gov.uk

AGENDA
PART I
It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda
will be dealt with in public.

1.

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

(Pages 1
- 2)

(Pages 3
- 10)

The Minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on Tuesday 6 July
2021, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record and signed by the
Chair.
4.

DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests,
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. NB Any
member needing clarification must contact the monitoring officer by email
at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Please refer to the guidance
on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter.

5.

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

(Pages
11 - 14)

To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to
this report using the powers delegated to it.
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are no longer
circulated with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website
at http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx
6.

21/00842/VAREIA
Planning Variation of condition 4 (approved plans) on approved
application B/08/00465/FUL in order to substitute house types on
715no. plots
Land At South West Sector, Beacon Lane, Cramlington,
Northumberland

Strategic Planning Committee, 3 August 2021

(Pages
15 - 46)

7.

APPEALS UPDATE

(Pages
47 - 56)

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals. This
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area
Council Planning Committee areas and covers appeals of Strategic
Planning Committee.
8.

S106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE REPORT
For Members’ information to report the agreement monitoring and
collection of s106 contributions in the planning process. This is a monthly
report and relates to agreements throughout Northumberland during the
previous monthly period

9.

URGENT BUSINESS
To consider such business, as in the opinion of the Chair, should, by
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

Strategic Planning Committee, 3 August 2021

(Pages
57 - 60)

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:
● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you.
● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.
Name (please print):

Meeting:
Date:
Item to which your interest relates:

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code
of Conduct) (please give details):

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details):

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?

1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the
issue being discussed in the meeting:
a) relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of
Conduct); or

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 3 August 2021

b) any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)
The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you
or your spouse or civil partner:
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts
with the Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies
with the Council; or (7) Securities - interests in Companies trading with the Council.
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests:
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to
which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which (i) exercises
functions of a public nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal
purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade
union) of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management ); or (3)
any person from whom you have received within the previous three years a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable to your position as an elected or
co-opted member of the Council.
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest
when you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an
item of business which is to be transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well
being or financial position, or the well being or financial position of a person described below to
a greater extent than most inhabitants of the area affected by the decision.
The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you
have a close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer,
any firm in which they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder.
3. Non-participation in Council Business
When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are aware that the criteria set out below are satisfied in relation to any
matter to be considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact
to the meeting; (b) Not participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; (c) Not participate in any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting;
and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed.
The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or
non-registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public
knowing the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position
of yourself or one of the persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries;
or (c) the matter concerns a request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought
by yourself or any of the persons referred to above or in any of your register entries.
This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which
are contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct. If in any doubt, please consult the
Monitoring Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting.

Strategic Planning Committee, 3 August 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEE

A Welcome from Chairman to members and those members of the public watching on the
livestream
Welcome to also include reference to
(i)

(ii)

Fact that meeting is being held in a Covid safe environment and
available to view on a live stream through You Tube
Northumberland TV
Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking

B Record attendance of members
(i)

Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies
received.

C Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests
D Development Control
APPLICATION
Chair
Introduces application
Site Visit Video (previously circulated) - invite members questions
Planning Officer
Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report

Page 1

Public Speaking
Objector(s) (up to 5 mins)
Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 5 mins)
Applicant/Supporter (up to 5 mins)
NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS OR OF/BY LOCAL COUNCILLOR
Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers
Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any questions of the
Planning Officers
Debate (Rules)
Proposal
Seconded
DEBATE
Again Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to
participate in the debate
●
●
●
●

No speeches until proposal seconded
Speech may not exceed 6 minutes
Amendments to Motions
Approve/Refuse/Defer

Vote(by majority or Chair’s casting vote)
(i)
(ii)

Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution
Legal officer should then record the vote FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding
members that they should abstain where they have not heard all of the consideration
of the application)

Page 2

Agenda Item 3
NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
At the meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee held at Meeting Space - Block 2,
Floor 2 - County Hall on Tuesday, 6 July 2021 at 4.00 pm.
PRESENT
T Thorne (Chair) (in the Chair)
MEMBERS
C Ball
B Flux
G Hill
J Lang
M Robinson
A Wallace

L Darwin
J Foster
JI Hutchinson
J Reid
G Stewart

OTHER COUNCILLORS

OFFICERS
H Bowers
D Feige
D Lally
L Little
C Mead
R Murfin
J Murphy
G Park
E Sinnamon
A Ward
S Wilson

Democratic Services Officer
Environment and Design Team Manager
Chief Executive
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Highways Development Manager
Director of Planning
South East DM Area Manager
Environmental Health Officer
Development Service Manager
Communications Lead - External
Media Communication Officer

Around 6 members of the press and public were present.
10

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES
The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed at the meeting

11

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillors Dodd, Swinbank and Watson.

12

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Ch.’s Initials………

Page 3

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

1

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on
Tuesday 8 June 2021, as circulated, be agreed as true record and signed by the
Chair.
13

DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Councillor Reid advised that he had a conflict of interests and withdrew from the
meeting. Councillors Flux stated that he was a member of Cramlington Town
Council who had been consulted on the application, however he had taken no
part in any discussion. Councillor Foster stated that she was a member of
Choppington Parish Council who had advised of their strong support for the
application, however she had taken no part in any discussion.

14

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
The report requested the Committee to decide the planning applications attached
to the report using the powers delegated to it. Members were reminded of the
principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the
procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the
need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of planning
applications.
The Chair acknowledged the huge amount of work undertaken by Officers in
bringing this application to Committee and stated he hoped that the site visit and
information provided would assist Members to make an informed decision.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.

15

21/00818/FULES
Erection of battery manufacturing plant with ancillary offices, together with
associated development and infrastructure works (including site
preparation works, ground modelling, drainage, landscaping, vehicular
assess, cycle and pedestrian access, parking provision, substation and
other associated works)
Land at Former Power Station Site on Northern Side of Cambois, Cambois,
Northumberland
J Murphy, South East Area DM Area Manager introduced the application to the
Committee with the aid of a power point presentation. It was confirmed that all
Members had received and read the update which had been circulated by email
earlier that day, which had also been uploaded to the Council’s website.
R Murfin, Director of Planning informed the Committee of the way in which the
application had been assessed by officers, the alignment with both the existing
and emerging development plan and the reasonableness of the significant weight
which could be given to the localised and wider economic benefits of the
application.
He advised that as the proposal was also subject to the Environmental Impact

Ch.’s Initials………

Page 4

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

2

Assessment (EIA) regulations, Members should also consider the extent to which
the application was supported by a rigorous, robust and up to date information in
the Environmental Statement (ES). He went on to describe how the ES had;
•

Been used to inform the evaluation of the proposal and how a
“triangulation exercise” had taken place with consultees and statutory
consultees in order to verify the conclusions set out the ES.

•

Subject to appropriate public consultation, including on the receipt of
additional information

•

Informed the design and evaluation of mitigation and the formulation of
conditions and legal agreements to secure such

R Murfin then drew Members attention to the specific sections of the officer report
which addressed the suitability of the ES and confirmed that, for all the reasons
set out and described, that it was his advice that the EIA Regulations had be fully
and properly complied with.
D Feige, Environment and Design Team Manager, further advised of the
significant important ecological considerations in the EIA in respect of this large
site which was in proximity to the coast and a range of different habitats and was
important to specific bird species. He confirmed that while a certain amount of
mitigation could be provided on site, as the development was so large, it had also
been necessary to identify off site provision for the remainder. The “Potland
Burn” site had been agreed with Natural England as being well-suited for habitat
creation and the level of net gain was over and above what was commensurate
with the loss on site. Defra’s biodiversity net gain metric had been used to
calculate the area of land required, to ensure there was both rigour and
transparency to the process.
Guy Wakefield, Agent on behalf of the applicant addressed the Committee
speaking in support of the application. His comments included the following:•

•
•

•

Ch.’s Initials………

He thanked officers for their hard work and professionalism in
dealing with this application. He also thanked the Town and Parish
Councils who had been keen to engage, learn and share their views
on the proposals and advised that BritishVolt (BV) remained
committed to continuing those discussions going forward.
The application had been submitted following months of preapplication discussions with officers to understand the issues which
needed to be assessed.
The EIA robustly assessed those matters and concluded that there
would be no significant adverse effects subject to appropriate
mitigation which would be secured by conditions and the S106
agreement and examples of these were provided.
The scheme had the potential to generate 3,000 jobs and at its peak
for 2,400 construction workers and potential for subsequent
employment opportunities in the future and the use of the railway
line. Local people would be employed and training provided.

Page 5

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

3

Peter Rolton, Chair and UK Chief Executive Officer of BritishVolt addressed the
Committee speaking in support of the application. His comments included the
following:•

•

•
•
•

•
•

•

BV was at the vanguard of the electrification ability. Their world
class team planned to build the world’s first major gigaplant with a
minimum capacity of 30 g/w per hour at the former coal stock yards
in Cambois.
He also thanked the Council’s planning team who had worked hard,
efficiently and diligently alongside BV team and it was a remarkable
achievement that an application of this size had been brought to
Committee in such a timely manner.
The UK automotive industry needed gigafactories, with 4 to 8
gigafactories required before 2030 to meet demand as vehicles
powered by combustion engines were phased out.
Cambois was the best site in the UK, its unique combination of grid,
deep water port and rail renewable power made it such.
He was brought up in the North East and he was proud to be able to
offer this project to the Committee for determination. He referred to
the previous loss of industries and mining and the investment which
was needed in the area which would bring skilled and semi-skilled
jobs for current and future generations.
Electric vehicles and their batteries were part of the next industrial
revolution as we transitioned to a zero carbon economy.
The Company hoped to be a catalyst for wider economic and social
uplift across the area. He highlighted the number of young people
who had moved away due to the lack of prospects and it was hoped
that BV would provide the first step on the journey to reverse this.
It was a major opportunity to put Northumberland on the map and
this had been the most exciting project he had ever worked on.

In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following
information was provided:•

•

Ch.’s Initials………

A large part of negotiations undertaken in respect of the application
had been in relation to the fundamental concerns of Highways
England on the impact of the scheme on the road network. A lot of
work had been undertaken to provide cycle/pedestrian routes to the
site and a condition attached to any permission granted would seek
to flesh out the details of links between Blyth and the site and other
areas of population were factored into the design at an early stage.
There would be requirements to use land outside the applicant’s
ownership for some parts and this had been written into the S106
agreement. Due to the timescale it had not been possible to
achieve rail connectivity to the site however talks had been
undertaken with the applicant and how this could be achieved and
the applicant was in dialogue with Network Rail in respect of this.
The scheme was striving to achieve nearly 50% sustainable travel
for employees with 20% to use the shuttle bus; 7% cycling; 1%
walking and 17% car sharing all included in the travel plan targets
which were conditioned. There was a commitment to provide land
for the cycle track which would be a 4m wide facility which was the

Page 6

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

4

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Ch.’s Initials………

newest standard. A review would need to be undertaken in respect
of street lighting and the applicant had committed to this being done.
Members were advised that they could not take account of
ownership of the land to be developed, however to provide context
the Director of Planning advised that the sale of the land was
conditional on the site being developed.
The recently announced battery plant for Nissan was only a third of
the size of this application and was aimed at supply for the Nissan
factory, the production of batteries at this plant was aimed at the
wider UK and beyond market. If both plants were running at full
capacity then this would still only generate 1/5th of the production
required for the Country’s needs. There was a very strong pattern
emerging of this being a favoured location for renewable energy and
this could be the first part of the economic regeneration of the area
and there could possibly be more capacity for battery production.
The habitat mitigation to be provided at Potland Burn would not be
like for like as the post-industrial use of the coal stocking yard was
particularly good for some species and to provide like for like would
require huge amounts similar materials to be imported. The site had
been characterised as to what was important and equivalents
provided, i.e. habitats to attract similar types of wading birds and
diverse planting communities to attract the similar types of
invertebrate communities.
All swept path analysis necessary had been undertaken in respect
of the application and everything done to ensure that the highway
was not harmed as a consequence of this development. Signage to
the site during the construction phase would be managed through
the Construction Management Plan which would ensure that the
works were correctly signed. There would be fewer HGV
movements during the operational aspect of the plant with more
familiar trips being undertaken, however if there was a need for
additional clear signage, Highways would ensure that this was
delivered.
Public Protection had looked at all aspects of adverse impacts on
residents and the design of the screening and layout of the plant
reflected this process and they were happy with the proposals
subject to the recommendations outlined in the report. The detailed
Construction Management Plan included information on liaison with
the local community and details of complaints handling /resolution
with significant onus on the applicant to ensure that this was
undertaken.
Significant weight had been given to the economic benefit of the
proposals to the local area with everything being done to ensure
that local people who were out of work and families on low incomes
were able to access jobs with a local supplier strategy, employment
support strategy and skills strategy to provide the training and skills
infrastructure required.
The characteristics of the biodiversity on the site which would be lost
had been looked at and whilst Potland Burn was not a like for like
replacement it would allow a 10% uplift in the quality of biodiversity
to be provided. Potland Burn was the only location in the County
where this could be achieved. If other sites came forward for future

Page 7

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

5

•

•

•

•
•

development then it might be possible to fund work at other sites if
they have suitable characteristics
Work had been undertaken with the Skills Team at the Council to
map gaps in skills in areas of multiple deprivation and to tailor
support to those locations. No guarantee could be provided that
residents from those areas would get jobs but they would be given
the best chances to allow this to happen. Training would be
provided to those not in employment, help provided to update their
CVs and if they attended the training course they would be
guaranteed an interview. The plant would not be at full capacity
until 2028 and performance targets could be included to recruit a
percentage from certain areas and conditions attached to any
permission granted to ensure that the type of training being provided
could be revised if these targets were not being achieved.
It had been made very clear during the opening of the examination
in public of the Local Plan submitted in May 2019, that as a result of
the Borderlands deal, North of Tyne deal, the development of
Energy Central, including the proposals by BritishVolt, growth of the
Port of Blyth and the opening of the Northumberland Line that the
Local Plan would need to be tweaked and adjusted to reflect these.
Cabinet had agreed that immediately following adoption of the Local
Plan a review would be undertaken to ensure that the alignment of
housing and infrastructure was right bearing in mind those changes.
As part of the Local Planning process, the assessment of the
highways network capacity had taken into account all committed
development and allocated land for future development. The key
point of tension was Moor Farm and there were national debates on
this taking place. BV could be accommodated and the interventions
planned on the other elements of infrastructure could also be
accommodated. Work was being undertaken as part of the North of
Tyne infrastructure mapping to ascertain other works that would be
required and it was possible that funding for network improvements
would come forward through that. Scoping works for improvements
to Moor Farm were proposed to be completed by 2025 with the
scheme to be implemented by 2030 and it was hoped that this could
be accelerated.
The applicant was very keen to progress to construction phase if
permission was granted and skills training would commence straight
away.
Contingencies would be in place for emergency re-routing of
vehicles however this would be different during different phases of
the scheme. If there was a route which was unsuitable for vehicles
should they be unable to access the main strategic road network,
then a conversation would need to be had with Highways England.
Route logistics planning would also be undertaken with the applicant
and part of the information given to drivers could be that they were
not to take diversions but to stay on the strategic routes even if this
meant a delay to their journey. The condition regarding the logistics
and management plan would allow leverage to have this factored in
and be picked up as the scheme developed.

Councillor Robinson proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the
Ch.’s Initials………

Page 8

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

6

application subject to the conditions in the report and as amended in line with the
update circulated and the completion of the S106 agreement as outlined in the
report which was seconded by Councillor Flux.
Members thanked the officers for the diligent and professional work undertaken in
bringing this application to Committee and advised that they fully supported the
application. Councillor Wallace advised that previous applications for this site had
fallen through and the residents of Cambois hoped that this application would
come to fruition. It was hoped that better facilities including the provision of a
much improved bus service to Cambois would result from the application and
Members asked that signage made it clear that the gigaplant was in Cambois and
not Blyth. Councillor Robinson in summing up stated that he hoped that the
development would be truly transformational for the deprived area and would
redress the balance of the loss of previous industries and send the message that
Northumberland was open for large scale businesses.
A vote was taken and it was unanimously
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED subject to the conditions in the
report and as amended in the update circulated and the completion of a S106
agreement to secure the following obligations:•
•
•
•
•

Financial contribution of £1,688,400 towards off site Ecological
compensation and Net Gain to be attributed at the Potland Burn
site.
The provision of Highways works including suitable sustainable
connectivity along Brock Lane and the entering into of a Highways
Agreement.
A Construction Local Supplier Employment Strategy
An Employment Plan and
A Training Skills Plan.

The meeting was adjourned for a 5 minute break at this point and resumed at
5.32 pm.
16

21/01746/FUL
Provision of temporary substations and associated cabling for the
construction of the proposed Gigaplant (Application Reference
21/000818/FULES)
Land East of Sleekburn Business Centre, West Sleekburn, Northumberland
J Murphy, South East Area DM Area Manager introduced the application to the
Committee with the aid of a power point presentation. Attention was drawn to the
additional condition which was proposed and had been circulated on the update
emailed to Members of the Committee and uploaded to the Council’s website in
advance of the Committee.
Councillor Flux proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the
application subject to the conditions outlined in the report and additional condition
as highlighted above which was seconded by Councillor Stewart.

Ch.’s Initials………

Page 9

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

7

A vote was taken and it was unanimously
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED subject to the conditions as
outlined in the report with the inclusion of the additional condition as outlined on
the additional information circulated.

17

APPEALS UPDATE
RESOLVED that the information be noted.

18

S106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE REPORT
RESOLVED that the information be noted.

CHAIR……………………………………..
DATE……………………………………….

Ch.’s Initials………

Page 10

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 6 July 2021

8

Agenda Item 5

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 3 AUGUST 2021
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
Report of the Director of Planning
Cabinet Member: Councillor C Horncastle

Purpose of report
To request the Strategic Planning Committee to decide the planning applications attached
to this report using the powers delegated to it.
Recommendations
The Strategic Planning Committee is recommended to consider the attached planning
applications and decide them in accordance with the individual recommendations, also
taking into account the advice contained in the covering report.
Key issues
Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations that
must be taken into account when determining the application. These are set out in the
individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda.
Author and Contact Details
Report author: Rob Murfin
Director of Planning
01670 622542
Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk

Page 11

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
Introduction
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be
determined by the Strategic Planning Committee in accordance with the current
delegation arrangements. Any further information, observations or letters relating to
any of the applications contained in this agenda and received after the date of
publication of this report will be reported at the meeting.
The Determination of Planning and Other Applications
2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to take
into account the following general principles:
● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is
material to the application
● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the development plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise
● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the light of
all material considerations
● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission must
be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving permission,
and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear planning reasons both
of which are defensible on appeal
● Where the Strategic Planning Committee is minded to determine an application
other than in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation, clear reasons should
be given that can be minuted, and appropriate conditions or refusal reasons put
forward
3. Planning conditions must meet the tests that are set down in paragraph 56 of the
NPPF and meet the tests set out in Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010.
Conditions must be:
a. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b. directly related to the development; and
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer advice,
they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers as to what
constitute material planning considerations, and as to what might be appropriate
conditions or reasons for refusal.

Page 12

Important Copyright Notice
5.

The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright reserved.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports.
Implications
Policy

Procedures and individual recommendations are in line with
policy unless otherwise stated

Finance and
value for
money

None unless stated

Legal

None unless stated

Procurement

None

Human
Resources

None

Property

None

Equalities

Planning applications are considered having regard to the
Equality Act 2010

(Impact
Assessment
attached)

Yes ☐ No ☐
N/A
☐
Risk
Assessment

None

Crime
Disorder

As set out in the individual reports

&

Customer
Consideratio
n

None

Carbon
reduction

Each application will have an impact on the local environment
and it has been assessed accordingly

Wards

All

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
3 AUGUST 2021
Application No:
Proposal:
Site Address
Applicant:

Ward
Valid Date:
Case Officer
Details:

21/00842/VAREIA
Planning Variation of condition 4 (approved plans) on approved
application B/08/00465/FUL in order to substitute house types on 715no.
plots
Land At South West Sector, Beacon Lane, Cramlington, Northumberland
Mrs Amy Ward
Agent:
C/O Barratt House, The
Watermark, Gateshead,
NE11 9SZ
Cramlington West
Parish
Cramlington
24 March 2021
Expiry
6 August 2021
Date:
Name:
Mr Geoff Horsman
Job Title: Principal Planning Officer
Tel No:
01670 625553
Email:
geoff.horsman@northumberland.gov.uk

Recommendation: That this application be GRANTED permission subject to
conditions and the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement in respect of
those matters detailed in this report.

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright (Not to Scale)

Page 15

1.

Introduction

1.1

Development of this site for 715 dwellings with associated recreational facilities
within the northern part of the South West Sector of Cramlington was previously
considered by the former South East Area Planning Committee on the 21 April
2015 and Strategic Planning Committee on the 7 February 2017 under planning
application B/08/00465/FUL. At that time Members resolved that planning
permission should be granted subject to conditions and the applicant entering
into a Section 106 Agreement regarding the provision of infrastructure to support
the proposed development. Following completion of that Section 106 Agreement
planning permission was granted on the 3 May 2017. Material operations were
undertaken on site prior to the 3 May 2020 to commence the approved
development and pre-commencement planning conditions have also been
discharged. The previously granted permission therefore remains extant at this
time.

1.2

The current planning application the subject of this report seeks to vary the
previous planning permission by amending the proposed house types with some
associated minor site layout changes also proposed. In addition, the applicant
is seeking to replace the Section 106 Agreement that runs alongside the
previous permission with a new Section 106 Agreement that provides for
contributions not previously included concerning ecology coastal mitigation and
healthcare and the removal and reduction of previously included contributions
due to recently established abnormal development costs that affect the financial
viability of the proposed development.

2.

Description of the Application Site & Proposal

2.1

The application site comprises undeveloped land which was formerly in
agricultural use and is sited to the immediate south west of Cramlington. The
site covers an area of around 34 hectares.

2.2

Access to the site at present is from Beacon Lane to the north.

2.3

The site is bounded to the north by the Azure Garden Centre and the Beaconhill
Green estate. To the east is further agricultural land and beyond this the east
coast main railway line. To the south lies further agricultural land which has
planning permission for housing as part of the wider Cramlington South West
Sector area and beyond this the Arcot Hall golf course Site of Special Scientific
Interest (SSSI) and an area of woodland. To the west is land being redeveloped
for housing and beyond this Fisher Lane.

2.4

Permission is sought under Section 73 of the Town & Country Planning Act to
amend the house types and layout for the development of 715 dwellings. This
would necessitate changing the wording of condition 4 (approved plans)
attached to the original permission to replace previously approved drawing
numbers with revised drawing numbers. The extensive areas of open space
which comprise part of the development including the provision of 2 grass
playing pitches, a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA), a pavilion with changing
facilities and play areas remain unchanged from the original approval in terms
of those areas of the site set aside for such elements. Access arrangements for
the site also remain unchanged with the primary access to the site still proposed
from Beacon Lane to the north with a secondary access from Langdale Drive

Page 16

for pedestrians/cyclists only on a day to day basis but which also includes
provision for use by emergency vehicles in the rare event that access from
Beacon Lane is not possible.
2.5

The mix of dwellings proposed comprises: 2 x 1 bed flats, 136 x 2 bed houses,
394 x 3 bed houses and 183 x 4 bed houses. House types range from 1-3
storeys in height with the majority being 2 storey units.

2.6

The new Section 106 Agreement proposed seeks approval for contributions as
follows:

2.7

Reduction in affordable housing from 143 units (20%) to 57 units (8%). The
affordable housing mix would comprise 28 affordable rented units and 29
Discount Market Value sale/shared ownership units. The Affordable rented
units would comprise 2 x 1 bed flats, 6 x 2 bed bungalows, 12 x 2 bed houses,
4 x 3 bed houses and 4 x 4 bed houses. The DMV/shared ownership units
would comprise 15 x 2 bed houses and 14 x 3 bed houses.

2.8

Reduction of contribution for sports pavilion building from £759,000 to
£697,998.

2.9

Contributions totalling £507,000 for provision of 2 grass playing pitches, play
areas and a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) which is a reduction of £139,000
from the current Agreement.

2.10

Maintenance contributions in respect of the sports pavilion building and
MUGA/playing pitches/play areas totalling £111,000 which remain unchanged.

2.11

A new ecology coastal mitigation contribution of £319,002.

2.12

Reduction of primary education contribution from £4,800,000 to £4,400,000 and
of secondary education contribution from £740,000 to £684,500.

2.13

A new healthcare contribution of £415,500.

2.14

Travel planning scheme contributions reduced from £428,000 to £250,000,
although a contribution of £194,000 to fund the salary of a Travel Plan Coordinator remains unchanged.

2.15

A Local Centre land maintenance contribution of £10,000 remains unchanged.

2.16

A master planning design contribution of £20,000 and a community trust
contribution related to travel plan measures of £20,000 are proposed for
removal from the Agreement. Maintenance contributions for SUDS of £778,000
and Public Open Space of £148,000 are also proposed for deletion with a
replacement clause proposed in the new Section 106 Agreement to secure the
setting up of a private management company to undertake such maintenance
with it being anticipated that maintenance costs will be secured through service
charges levied on future occupiers of the proposed dwellings.

2.17

A financial viability appraisal and a full breakdown of abnormal development
costs have been supplied by the applicant in support of their request to amend
the Section 106 Agreement contributions and County Council Officers have

Page 17

commissioned an in-house chartered surveyor and an external quantity
surveyor to independently scrutinise this documentation.
2.18

The original application was accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES)
under the EIA Regulations and an updated ES Addendum Report has been
submitted with this latest application which concludes that the environmental
effects of the proposed development have not substantially altered from those
identified in the original ES.

3. Planning History
Reference Number: B/01/00506/OUT
Description: Development of residential; retail; community; recreational and
open space provision; and associated highways, footpaths, cycleways and
landscaping (Amended plans received 29 March 2006)
Status: REF
Reference Number: B/06/00358/OUT
Description: The development of residential dwellings of mixed property types, with
garages and associated infrastructure: incorporating roads, footpaths, cycleways and
landscaping; recreational and formal/informal open space provision and a local centre
including retail facilities.
Status: PER
Reference Number: B/08/00465/FUL
Description: Erection of 715 dwelling houses on land adjacent to east and west of
Beacon Lane in the south west sector, Cramlington. Development includes playing fields,
a pavilion, 3No areas for play equipment, a multi-use games area, 3No sub stations (As
amended)
Status: PER
Reference Number: 11/01040/REM
Description: Reserved matters application for The development of residential dwellings
of mixed property types, with garages and associated infrastructure: incorporating roads,
footpaths, cycleways and landscaping; recreational and formal/informal open space
provision.
Status: PER
Reference Number: 20/00917/NONMAT
Description: Non-Material Amendment relating to approved planning application
B/08/00465/FUL. Amend condition 4 to include approved plans list as shown in draft S106
Status: PER
Reference Number: 20/01063/DISCON
Description: Discharge of conditions 5 (S78 Design), 6 (S38 Design), 15 (Ground
Contamination Desk Study, Remediation Strategy and Validation), 18 (Gas Verification
Report), 24 (Level Information), 32 (Beacon Lane Crossing Roundabout), 33 (Beacon
Lane Crossing Point), 34 (Beacon Lane Widening), 38 (PROW), 39 (Archaeology), 41
(Drainage and Surface Water Disposal), 42 (SUDs Maintenance Plan), 43 (Drainage and
Surface Water Disposal), and 44 (Site Investigations) pursuant to planning permission
B/08/00465/FUL
Status: PER
Appeals

Page 18

Reference Number: 05/00016/NONDET
Description: Development of residential; retail; community; recreational and
open space provision; and associated highways, footpaths, cycleways and
landscaping (Amended plans received 29 March 2006)
Status: DISMIS
4. Consultee Responses
Cramlington Town
No response received.
Council
Health Care CG
Section 106 contribution of £441,300 sought for enhancement
of healthcare facilities in Cramlington.
Strategic Estates

No response received.

Highways

No objection in principle.
The layout offers reasonable walking and cycling permeability,
although there are a few residential cul-de-sacs that would
benefit from a greater number of direct opportunities to the
wider area.
The vehicle tracking has some notable over-run but these will
be reviewed with any technical approval. However the
applicant will need to be aware that servicing vehicles
interfering with the perception of safe and suitable walking
would not be, in the view of the highway authority, an
acceptable planning outcome and so further work will be
required at the technical approval stage, outside of planning.
The layout has a number of 'squares' and little detail is
provided and the nature of the squares will lead to issues
should a better understanding of the use of these areas,
including parking not be addressed. The applicant will need to
consider ways to improve the quality of the squares for
sustainable users and also consider parking controls.
The applicant will need to ensure agreements are in place for
any visitor parking in private areas so that the planning benefits
of visitor parking always remain with the proposals.
The garage internal dimensions are acceptable

Countryside/ Rights
Of Way

No objections.

County Archaeologist No objections.
County Ecologist

Insufficient information has been submitted to enable this
application to be determined. The following information should
be submitted to enable us to assess this application:
1. Evidence that the habitat, bird and bat mitigation can be
delivered around the revised plot types (revised landscaping
plan, tree and hedgerow retention plan).

Page 19

2. Confirmation of the retention or removal or works to the
semi-mature ash tree on the northern boundary containing a
bat roost (identified as T83 in Ground Based Tree Risk
Assessment, OS Ecology Ltd, March 2020).
An ecology coastal mitigation contribution of £319,002 needs
to be secured. SSSI Management Plan condition not required if
this has already been secured in respect of proposed
development to the south elsewhere on the Cramlington South
West Sector site.
Open Spaces South
East Area
South SE Tree And
Woodland Officer
Affordable Housing

No response received.

Public Protection

No objections.

Education - Schools

Section 106 contributions sought as per original Section 106
Agreement. Given the number of development sites ongoing in
Cramlington we expect demand for places in the school
catchment areas in Cramlington to increase, with secondary
places already being oversubscribed. Therefore, Education
and Skills group would object to any decrease to the agreed
amount set out in the current S106 agreement relating to the
Education contribution on the basis that there is a risk that this
will lead to insufficient funds available from developer
contributions to mitigate any requirement to increase schools'
capacity in the future. In any event, any developer funding
unspent by the Council on provision of additional capacity at
the end of the agreed term would be returned to the developer.

Lead Local Flood
Authority (LLFA)

No objections subject to conditions from original approval being
carried over into the varied permission.

Environment Agency

No comments.

Natural England

No comments.

Highways England

No objections.

Newcastle
International Airport
The Coal Authority

No response received.

Northumbrian Water
Ltd

No comments.

Network Rail

No objections.

Sport England

No comments.

No response received.
No objections.

No objections.

Page 20

Newcastle City
Council
North Tyneside
Council

No response received.

Northumberland
Wildlife Trust
Fire & Rescue
Service
Architectural Liaison
Officer - Police

No response received.

Comments raised on previous application regarding the need
for further assessment of potential impacts on the wider
highway network not addressed and therefore such further
assessment is requested again.

No response received.
No comments.

5. Public Responses
Neighbour Notification
Number of Neighbours Notified
Number of Objections
Number of Support
Number of General Comments

145
7
0
0

Notices
Site Notice – 13 April 2021
News Post Leader 1 April 2021
Summary of Responses:
7 objections received from local residents raising concerns.
The majority of these object to the proposed pedestrian/cycle route and emergency
access from the site to Langdale Drive. They consider this to be unnecessary given
other nearby pedestrian/cycle routes and raise concerns that it could be used by
general vehicle traffic, would be harmful to residents in terms of increased noise and
light pollution and crime and harmful in highway safety terms.
Residents in Kielder Avenue raise concerns regarding increased noise and air
pollution and loss of privacy from the works proposed as part of the development to
improve Beacon Lane which will bring vehicles closer to their properties. Concern is
also raised regarding proposed 2.5 storey dwellings adjacent to the site boundary with
Kielder Avenue with a suggestion that bungalows are provided here. It is also
considered that ownership/maintenance of the existing strip of land between Kielder
Avenue and the application site needs to be resolved.
Finally objections are raised regarding the loss of ‘green field’ land to housing and
adverse impacts on local wildlife.

Page 21

The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on our
website.
6. Planning Policy
6.1 Development Plan Policy
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan March 2020
CNP1 – The sustainable development of Cramlington
CNP2 – Northumberland Coastal Mitigation Service
CNP3 – Promoting good quality design in new developments
CNP6 – Extending choice in housing
CNP7 – Providing lifetime affordable housing
CNP8 – Creating high quality new places through good quality housing design/layout
CNP14 – Sustainable and active travel
CNP15 – Connectivity of development sites
CNP17 – Green Infrastructure Networks
CNP20 – Protecting trees and woodland
CNP23 – Community Facilities
CNP24 – Infrastructure
CNP25 – Healthy communities
Blyth Valley District Local Plan 1999
E3 – Landscape: General Approach
E5 – Protection of tree and shrub cover
H21 – Design and layout principles for New Housing Areas
SW1 – Energy efficient housing
SW2 – Housing development
SW5 – Landscape Structure
SW6 – Play space
SW7 – The Road Network
SW8 – Footpath/cycleway system
Blyth Valley Core Strategy 2007
SS1 - Regeneration and Spatial Strategy
SS2 - Sequential Approach and Phasing
SS3 - Sustainability Criteria
H1 - Housing Provision
H2 - Making the Best and Most Efficient Use of Land
H3 - Mix of Housing Development
ENV1 – Natural Environment & Resources
ENV2 – Historic & Built Environment
A2 – Pedestrian/cycle routes
Blyth Valley Development Control policies DPD 2007
DC1 - General Development
DC2 – Planning Obligations
DC11 – Planning for sustainable travel
DC12 – Provision of community facilities

Page 22

DC13 – Open space contributions
DC14 – Sites of National Importance for Nature Conservation
DC16 – Biodiversity
DC17 – Landscape: General Protection & Restoration
DC19 - Drainage and Flood Risk
DC21 - Pollution Control
DC22 - Noise Pollution
DC26 - Archaeology
DC27 - Design of New Developments
DC30 – Integrated renewable energy
6.2 National Planning Policy
NPPF
NPPG
6.3 Other Documents/Strategies
Northumberland Local Plan - Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) (Jan 2019) as
amended by proposed Main Modifications (June 2021)
STP 1 – Spatial strategy (Strategic Policy)
STP 2 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)
STP 3 – Principles of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)
STP 4 – Climate change mitigation and adaptation (Strategic Policy)
STP 6 – Green Infrastructure (Strategic Policy)
HOU 2 – Provision of new residential development (Strategic Policy)
HOU 5 – Housing types and mix
HOU 6 – Affordable housing provision
HOU 9 – Residential development management
QOP 1 – Design principles (Strategic Policy)
QOP 2 – Good design and amenity
QOP 4 – Landscaping and trees
QOP 5 – Sustainable design and construction
QOP 6 – Delivering well-designed places
TRA 1 – Promoting sustainable connections
TRA 2 – The effects of development on the transport network
TRA 4 – Parking provision in new development
ENV 2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
ENV 3 – Landscape
ENV 7 – Historic environment and heritage assets
WAT 3 – Flooding
WAT 4 – Sustainable Drainage Systems
POL 1 – Unstable and contaminated land
POL 2 – Pollution and air, soil and water quality
INF 5 – Open spaces and facilities for sport and recreation
INF 6 – Planning obligations
7. Appraisal
7.1 It is considered that the main planning issues raised relate to:
•

Principle of development

Page 23

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Housing mix
Impact on the character and appearance of the area
Residential amenity impact
Highway safety/transportation matters
Flooding and drainage
Ground contamination/stability
Ecology matters
Aircraft safety
Archaeology
Section 106 contributions

Principle of Development
7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

In accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004, planning applications should be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this
case the development plan comprises policies in the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, the saved Policies of the Blyth valley District Local Plan
(1999), the Blyth Valley Core Strategy (adopted 2007) and the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD (adopted 2007) as identified above. The
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) and National
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) are material considerations in determining
this application.
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that weight can be given to policies contained
in emerging plans dependent upon three criteria: the stage of preparation of the
plan; the extent to which there are unresolved objections to policies within the
plan; and the degree of consistency with the NPPF. The Northumberland Local
Plan - Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) (NLP) was submitted to the
Secretary of State for Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
on 29 May 2019, and is currently going through the examination process.
On 9 June 2021, the Council published for consultation, a Schedule of proposed
Main Modifications to the draft Local Plan which the independent Inspectors
examining the plan consider are necessary to make the plan ‘sound’. As such
the plan is at an advanced stage of preparation, and the policies in the NLP Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) (Jan 2019) as amended by proposed
Main Modifications (June 2021), are considered to be consistent with the NPPF.
The NLP is a material consideration in determining this application, with the
amount of weight that can be given to specific policies (and parts thereof) is
dependent upon whether Main Modifications are proposed, and the extent and
significance of unresolved objections.
Overall, the principle of development on the site is considered to be acceptable
as this was resolved in granting planning permission previously and that
previous permission remains extant. The only matters therefore for
consideration in respect of this latest submission relate to the detailed aspects
of the proposed revised scheme and associated Section 106 Agreement.
Housing Mix and Affordable Housing

7.6

Neighbourhood Plan Policies CNP6 and CNP7 seek to extend choice in
housing and provide lifetime affordable homes. Proposals should assist in
meeting needs as identified in the Council’s Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) and the Cramlington Local Housing Needs Assessment.

Page 24

7.7
7.8

7.9
7.10

7.11

7.12

Policy H3 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy likewise seeks to promote a mix of
unit types and tenures on new housing developments.
The NPPF advises that to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes Local
Planning Authorities should plan for a mix of housing based on current and
future demographic trends, market trends and the needs of different groups in
the community. It goes on to state that Local Planning Authorities should
identify the range of tenure and range of housing that is required and provide
affordable housing in accordance with need.
The proposed affordable housing mix is considered acceptable as a range of
dwelling types are provided for including 1-4 bedroomed properties.
In terms of affordable housing the proposals comprising 57 units (8%) provision
are substantially less than the 20% provision secured under the present Section
106 Agreement, although the Council’s Affordable Housing team consider the
tenure and size mix of the 57 units proposed to be acceptable in and of
themselves.
The acceptability of the overall level of affordable housing provision has been
considered as part of the County Council’s assessment of the applicants
viability and abnormal costs documentation and it is accepted that this is the
level of affordable housing that can be accommodated having regard to the
predicted development values and costs, although viability review mechanisms
are proposed in the new Section 106 Agreement that may result in the provision
of additional affordable housing in future years if abnormal foundation costs
related to ground conditions and Part L/Future Homes costs are not as great
as currently envisaged.
Overall therefore in terms of housing mix and affordable housing the proposal
is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with Policy H3 of the Blyth
Valley Core Strategy and the NPPF.
Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area

7.13

7.14

7.15
7.16

7.17

Neighbourhood Plan Policies CNP3 and CNP8 promote high quality design in
new developments based on the Cramlington Design Principles outlined in the
Neighbourhood Plan. Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley Development Control
Policies DPD also promotes high quality design.
The NPPF advises that the Government attaches great importance to the
design of the built environment and recognises that good design is a key aspect
of sustainable development which is indivisible from good planning and should
contribute positively to making places better for people. The NPPF stresses the
importance of planning positively for the achievement of high quality and
inclusive design for all development and reinforces this message by stating that
permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take
the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area
and the way it functions.
Emerging Local Plan Policies QOP1, 2, 4 and 6 reflect the above design
objectives.
The proposed site layout is considered acceptable in urban design terms as
dwellings positively address road frontages and open space areas within the
site. The 1-3 storey building heights reflect the character of this edge of
Cramlington location and the Beaconhill estate to the north and the house types
are considered to be generally acceptable in terms of their design and detailing.
No precise details have been provided re external facing and roofing materials
It is considered that a condition could be attached requiring the submission of
materials details.

Page 25

7.18

7.19

Overall strategy drawings have been provided regarding landscaping. It is
considered that these are acceptable subject to conditions to ensure that they
are worked up in further detail to address comments made by the Council’s
Ecologist.
Overall the proposals are considered acceptable in terms of their impact on the
character and appearance of the area.
Residential Amenity Impact

7.20

7.21

7.22
7.23

7.24

7.25

The nearest existing dwellings lie to the north and west of the application site.
These comprise properties on Lowther Square, Langdale Drive, Beacon Lane,
Elgin Close and Kielder Avenue. Separation distances between proposed
dwellings and properties on these neighbouring streets are considered
acceptable in terms of residential amenity and in response to objections from
residents in Kielder Avenue adjacent 2.5 storey dwellings originally proposed
have been replaced with 2 storey dwellings as per the previously approved
scheme.
Within the site itself it is considered that there are acceptable separation
distances between dwellings. At least 15 metres is generally provided for where
main habitable room elevations directly face one another and at least 10 metres
where gable ends face main habitable room elevations. These are a little below
the minimum separation distances that would normally be required but reflect
in the main and in places are an improvement on what was approved previously
under extant permission B/08/00465/FUL. Conditions are suggested re certain
plots to ensure that no additional windows are provided to certain elevations to
minimise overlooking.
Overall it is considered that a suitable form of development is achieved on the
site that would not have unacceptable effects upon the privacy or amenity of
residents.
With regard to noise pollution matters Policy DC22 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD seeks to ensure that noise sensitive
developments are adequately separated from noise generating uses and that
generally development is suitably mitigated from noise pollution. Public
Protection raise no objections on noise grounds.
Amenity concerns raised by residents regarding the Lowther Square
pedestrian/cycle link and Beacon Lane works are noted but these are reflective
of what has been approved previously and are therefore considered
acceptable.
Conditions are proposed to address construction work impacts.
Highway Safety/transportation matters

7.26 The NPPF advises that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are
severe.
7.27 The Council’s Highway Authority have assessed the proposal based on
information submitted, as well as on-site observations, local and national policy
requirements and other material considerations. A review of the information
provided has been undertaken and it is considered that the proposals are now
acceptable in principle in terms of highways matters following the submission
of amended plans which address detailed layout issues highlighted by the
Council’s highways team. Certain detailed matters related to swept paths,
highway design of 3 ‘squares’ on the layout and public access to visitor parking

Page 26

7.28

7.29
7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

bays in shared private drive areas will require further work but it is considered
that such detailed matters are best resolved at the later Highways Act technical
approval stage rather than as part of the planning process.
An existing public footpath (300/119) runs through the site from Beacon Lane.
A condition is suggested to secure continued access along this route during
construction works in line with details already approved re discharge of
condition 38 of the previous extant permission. Beyond construction work the
proposed site layout provides for safeguarding of this footpath route. The
Council’s Public Rights of Way team raise no objections.
Car parking levels are acceptable with appropriate levels of curtilage parking
being provided for dwellings and satisfactory levels of visitor parking also being
shown on the proposed layout.
Means of access to site will be via an improved Beacon Lane with the details
of these works having already been approved through discharges of conditions
on the previous permission. Further conditions are suggested to secure these
improvements in respect of this current application.
Resident concerns regarding the Lowther Square footpath/cycle route are
noted but as stated above this reflects what has already been approved under
the previous permission, although amended plans have been submitted
reducing the width of this link to 3 metres which is the characteristic width for a
shared pedestrian/cycle route such as this. On the previously approved
application this link was designated also as a pedestrian/cycle link but was
wider as it had originally been envisaged that it would operate as a bus route.
The proposal now however is to direct all bus services via Beacon Lane with a
through route being provided through the application site and the
Persimmon/Bellway development area to the south to the new roundabout that
has been constructed on Fisher Lane. A condition is also suggested regarding
the detailed design and provision of the proposed bollards for the Lowther
Square route to ensure that it cannot be used by vehicular traffic other than the
emergency services in the unlikely event that the main site access becomes
blocked.
The comments of North Tyneside Council requesting further modelling
regarding the impact of the proposals on the wider highway network are noted.
However, the principle of 715 dwellings on the site has already been
established through the previous grant of planning permission which remains
extant, with this current application seeking only to amend the house types and
layout of that scheme. Furthermore the County Council as Local Highway
Authority and Highways England as Strategic Highway Authority for the A1 and
A19 raise no objections on highway capacity grounds and the Cramlington
South West Sector site as a whole has been identified for comprehensive
redevelopment in the adopted development plan since 1999. As such it is not
considered that further modelling of highway network impacts is justified.
Overall the proposals are therefore now considered acceptable on highways
grounds although detailed technical specification matters will need to be
resolved at the later Highways Act technical approval stage.
Drainage and Flooding

7.34

The NPPF advises that development should be directed towards areas at
lowest risk from flooding and that Local Planning Authorities should ensure that
development does not increase flood risk elsewhere. The site lies within Flood
Zone 1 and therefore considered to be at low risk of flooding. Policy DC19 of

Page 27

7.35

the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD also seeks to ensure that
drainage and flood risk matters are satisfactorily addressed.
After reviewing the submitted information the Council’s LLFA team,
Northumbrian Water and the Environment Agency raise no objections with
conditions proposed to secure the details of surface and foul water drainage
provision.
Ground Contamination/Stability

7.36

7.37
7.38

It is considered expedient that proposals for the development of all land
identified as being, or potentially being contaminated by previous developments
or mineral workings to be accompanied by a statement of site investigation
outlining the tests undertaken and the evaluation of results, in order that the
Council may assess any direct threat to health, safety or the environment. It
also considered that proposals for development which is on unstable or
potentially unstable land should be accompanied by a statement on ground
stability, together with details of measures proposed to deal with any instability.
The application site lies within a Coal Authority Development High Risk area.
The Coal Authority and the Council’s Public Protection team raise no objections
subject to conditions.
Ecology matters

7.39

Updated ecology reports from those undertaken in connection with the previous
planning application have been examined by NCC Ecology. These show that
habitats on site have not changed significantly over the intervening time period
and therefore mitigation previously agreed remains appropriate. This includes
provision/retention outside of dwelling curtilages of the following:
•
•
•
•
•

Retention of the key hedgerows (2,000m) and trees (52);
Hedgerows on the southern and eastern boundaries to be gapped with
native species and managed to the benefit of wildlife;
New native species hedgerow (1650m) and tree planting (227);
New areas of species-rich grassland within the site of at least 2.5ha in
size;
Creation of species-rich grassland buffers along hedgerows, totalling
approx. 1ha.

7.40

Further mitigation measures are identified in the updated ecology reports.

7.41

Conditions are also suggested regarding construction mitigation activities, bat
mitigation, provision of bird/bat nesting features and external lighting.

7.42

Further discussions have taken place with NCC Ecology and it is considered
that all of the above matters can be addressed through conditions.

7.43

There has also been some discussion with the Council’s Ecologist regarding
the matter of a long term management plan for the SSSI to the south to mitigate
disturbance impacts from the proposed dwellings. This management plan has
recently been secured by condition through a grant of Reserved Matters
approval for part of the Persimmon/Bellway Homes housing site to the south
which is closer to the SSSI than this application site and therefore it is not

Page 28

considered that a further SSSI management plan condition is required were this
application to be supported.
7.44

The applicant has agreed to include in the revised Section 106 Agreement the
NCC Ecology requested contribution the £319,002 for ecology coastal
mitigation.

7.45

Overall the proposals are considered acceptable in ecology terms subject to
these conditions being attached.
Aircraft safety

7.46

7.47

No comments have been received from Newcastle Airport. However, in respect
of a recent Persimmon/Bellway Homes application to the south the airport
raised no objections in respect of aircraft safety subject to assurances around
planting details and bird hazard management re drainage features.
It is considered that these matters can be addressed through conditions.
Archaeology

7.48

A written scheme of investigation regarding archaeological evaluation has
already been agreed through partial discharge of a condition on the original
planning permission. NCC Archaeology raise no objections subject to a
condition requiring evaluation and recording to be undertaken in accordance
with that scheme.
Section 106 Contributions

7.49

The revised proposed Section 106 contributions are detailed earlier in this
report. Taking account of the new ecology coastal mitigation and healthcare
contributions that have been secured, which are not in the current Section 106
Agreement that runs alongside the previous extant permission, a reduction of
£1,065,000 in Section 106 contributions is proposed compared to the current
Agreement in addition to the affordable housing reduction from 20% to 8%.

7.50

However, £926,000 of the £1,065,000 reduction relates to the removal of
SUDS maintenance and informal open space maintenance contributions and
as stated earlier a new clause is proposed in the revised Section 106
Agreement that would meet such maintenance costs through the setting up of
a management company to look after these areas who would levy service
charges on estate occupiers to cover maintenance costs. The remaining
£139,000 reduction relates to a reduction in the proposed contribution for play
areas, although 3 play areas are still proposed with a contribution of £507,000
still offered to fund these as well as 2 grass playing pitches and a MUGA.

7.51

The Council’s in house chartered surveyor and externally appointed quantity
surveyor have assessed the developers viability appraisal and whilst there are
some differences of opinion regarding the detail of certain inputs they agree
that the scheme even with the affordable housing and Section 106
contributions now proposed still shows a deficit of at least £3 million and is
therefore unviable at present. The developer purchased parts of the
application site from the County Council in 2017 and is looking to bridge this
remaining viability gap by seeking to re-negotiate overage clauses in its land

Page 29

sale contract with the County Council which may assist in generating
additional development value from the scheme. However, that is a matter
separate to this planning application and the Council’s in house chartered
surveyor largely concurs with the overall development value put forward by
the applicant in their financial appraisal, albeit that the Council’s surveyor
values the scheme at slightly less than the applicant.
7.52 The Council’s externally appointed quantity surveyor has suggested that
viability review clauses be included in any revised Section 106 Agreement
regarding foundation costs and costs associated with Government changes
that will be taking place in future years around carbon dioxide emission
reductions through changes to Part L of the Building Regulations including the
Future Homes initiative. This is because it is not possible at this time to
specifically determine these costs due to the need for further site investigation
works re ground conditions and some uncertainties around Part L/Future
Homes costs due to further guidance/legislation being awaited from
Government and the possibility of some savings being achieved in future
years through economies of scale and increased supplier competition as
industry develops products to meet the new standards re carbon dioxide
emission reductions.
7.53

Whilst the reduction in affordable housing and other Section 106 contributions
is regrettable it is considered that such reductions can be supported in this
instance on viability grounds subject to the above-mentioned viability review
clauses.
Other Matters

7.54

Equality Duty - The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of
any proposal on those people with characteristics protected by the Equality
Act. Officers have had due regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act
2010 and considered the information provided by the applicant, together with
the responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the
proposal would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups
with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were
required to make it acceptable in this regard.

7.55

Crime and Disorder Act Implications - These proposals have no implications
in relation to crime and disorder.

7.56

Human Rights Act Implications - The Human Rights Act requires the County
Council to take into account the rights of the public under the European
Convention on Human Rights and prevents the Council from acting in a
manner which is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 of the Convention
provides that there shall be respect for an individual's private life and home
save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary
in a democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the
economic wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an
individual's peaceful enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with
save as is necessary in the public interest.

7.57

For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the
means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be

Page 30

realised. The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is
any identifiable interference with these rights. The Planning Considerations
identified are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is
proportionate. Case law has been decided which indicates that certain
development does interfere with an individual's rights under Human Rights
legislation. This application has been considered in the light of statute and
case law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate.
7.58

Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this
decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations.
Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal. Article 6 has been subject to a great deal
of case law. It has been decided that for planning matters the decision making
process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court,
complied with Article 6.

8. Conclusion
8.1 Overall the Reserved Matters details submitted are considered acceptable
subject to certain further conditions to address detailed matters.
8.2 With regard to the EIA Regulations and the updated ES Addendum Report it is
accepted having considered all of the above matters that the environmental
effects of the proposed development have not substantially altered from those
identified in the original ES.
8.3 As stated earlier whilst the reduction in affordable housing and other Section 106
contributions is regrettable it is considered that such reductions can be supported
in this instance due to viability constraints subject to viability review clauses re
foundation and Part L/Future Homes costs
8.4 This site comprises a significant element of the Cramlington South West Sector
development which contributes substantially to housing land supply for the plan
period of the new Local Plan in respect of both Cramlington and the wider County
and therefore there is a need to progress development of this large site as soon
as possible.
8.5 In addition to amending condition 4 to update the approved drawing numbers,
officers are also proposing changes to other conditions carried over from the
previous approval to assist with phasing of the development and to reflect
technical details approved under a recent discharge of condition application
related to the original permission. Further new conditions are also suggested to
reflect consultee comments.
8.6 Overall it is considered that sustainable development would be achieved in this
case having regard to the relevant polices of the development plan and the
NPPF. The identified development plan policies are considered to be consistent
with the NPPF, and the scheme therefore represents sustainable development
and should be supported subject to the following conditions and the applicant
entering into a Section 106 Agreement to secure the affordable housing and
infrastructure matters highlighted earlier in this report.

Page 31

9. Recommendation
That this application be GRANTED permission subject to the following conditions
and the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement to secure the affordable
housing and other contributions/matters highlighted earlier in this report.
Conditions/Reason
01.
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the 3 May 2017.
Reason: To ensure that the development is commenced within a reasonable period
of time from the date of this permission.
02.
A Site Wide Phasing Plan and Programme shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
any development above damp proof course level on the site. The phasing Plan and
Programme shall include details of the proposed sequence of development across
the entire site, the extent and location of individual development phases including
reference to the type and extent of any development envisaged in each phase.
Thereafter the development shall be carried out in full accordance with that approved
Phasing Plan and Programme. In this permission "phase" means each phase
identified on the Phasing Plan or such other plan as may be approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 2.
Reason: To ensure the orderly progression of the development.
03.
The Local Planning Authority shall be provided with no less than 28 days prior
written notice of the commencement of development of each phase.
Reason: In order to ensure development is carried out in an appropriate manner.
04.
The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in
complete accordance with the details contained within the following approved
plans/documents:
N81:2249 100 P1 Site Location Plan;
N81:2249 102 P24 Proposed Site Layout;
N81:2249 103 P23 Proposed Site Layout Sheet 1 of 2;
N81:2249 104 P22 Proposed Site Layout Sheet 2 of 2;
QD1603-00-100C Engineering Layout Sheet 1 of 2;
N81:2249 105 P8 External Finishes Sheet 1 of 2;
N81:2249 106 P8 External Finishes Sheet 2 of 2;
QD1603-00-102B External Works Sheet 1;
QD1603-00-103B External Works Sheet 2;
QD1603-00-104B External Works Sheet 3;
QD1603-00-106B External Works Sheet 5;
QD1603-00-500 Impermeable Areas 2021 Layout;
c-1574-01B Landscape Overview (to be amended through condition 10 further
submissions);
c-1574-02A Landscape Masterplan Sheet 1 of 4; (to be amended through condition
10 further submissions);

Page 32

c-1574-03A Landscape Masterplan Sheet 2 of 4; (to be amended through condition
10 further submissions);
c-1574-04A Landscape Masterplan Sheet 3 of 4; (to be amended through condition
10 further submissions);
Housetype Brochure February 2021;
LDG2H8 Twin Garage Details;
LSG1H8 Single Garage Details;
B54F0THE 01A Type 54 House Type;
BBLD0TCI 01 Bedale Mid House Type;
BBLD0THE 01A Bedale Semi-Detached Hipped House Type;
N81;2249 301 P1 Keepmoat Street scenes;
Environmental Statement Update received 03/03/21;
Revised Affordable Housing Statement 07/07/21;
N81:2249 110 D5 Affordable Housing Plan;
OS Ecology Bat Survey 19185 V1 (Draft) dated October 2020;
OS Ecology Breeding Bird Survey 19185 V2 (Draft) dated August 2020;
OS Ecology Ground Based Tree Risk Assessment 19185 V1 (Draft) dated March
2020;
OS Ecology Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 19185 V1 (Draft) dated December
2019;
OS Ecology Wintering Bird Survey 19185 V1 (Draft) dated March 2020
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
plans in the interests of proper planning.
05.
The road extension to Beacon Lane shall be implemented in accordance with
the details approved in respect of condition 5 of planning permission
B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application reference
20/01063/DISCON and made available for use by vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists
before the completion of no more than 500 dwellings on the site or within 10 years of
the commencement of development (whichever is sooner) and shall thereafter
remain open for use for vehicles, pedestrians and cycles to access land to the south
at all times. No barriers or other physical impediments to the use of this road
extension by vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists to access lands to the south shall be
put in place without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the provision of an integrated road system within the SW Sector
in the interest of securing sustainable travel modes and access to facilities by future
residents in a timely way in accordance with Policies CNP1 and CNP15 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan. Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy and
the NPPF.
06.
The access (including pedestrian and cycle access) between land to the south
and the footpath/cycleway to the east of the playing pitches shall be provided in
accordance with the details approved in respect of condition 6 of planning
permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application reference
20/01063/DISCON and in accordance with timing details concerning provision of this
access to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The access must be made available for use thereafter without restriction and provide
access to the land to the south,
Reason: In order to ensure a comprehensive network to promote sustainable routes
and to extend the opportunities to travel by safe and sustainable means in

Page 33

accordance with Policies CNP1 and CNP15 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan,
Policies SS3 and A2 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policy DC11 of the Blyth
Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
07.
No development shall take place:
a) unless in accordance with the mitigation detailed within: OS Ecology Bat Survey
19185 V1 (Draft) dated October 2020; OS Ecology Breeding Bird Survey 19185 V2
(Draft) dated August 2020; OS Ecology Ground Based Tree Risk Assessment 19185
V1 (Draft) dated March 2020; OS Ecology Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 19185
V1 (Draft) dated December 2019; OS Ecology Wintering Bird Survey 19185 V1
(Draft) dated March 2020 and the Environmental Statement submitted with
application B/08/00465/FUL including the provision/retention of the following outside
of dwelling curtilages – retention of the key hedgerows (2,000m) and trees (52)
including tree T83 (Ash) as identified in OS Ecology Ground Based Tree Risk
Assessment 19185 V1 (Draft) dated March 2020, hedgerows on the southern and
eastern boundaries to be gapped with native species and managed to the benefit of
wildlife, new native species hedgerow (1650m) and tree planting (227), new areas of
species-rich grassland within the site of at least 2.5ha in size, creation of speciesrich grassland buffers along hedgerows, totalling approx. 1ha and new areas of
native scrub; and
b) until protection measures are in place for the retention of the key hedgerows
(2,000m) and trees (52) including tree T83 (Ash) as identified in OS Ecology Ground
Based Tree Risk Assessment 19185 V1 (Draft) dated March 2020.
Reason: To protect Arcot Hall Grasslands and Ponds SSSI and conserve protected
species and their habitat in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policies SS1, SS3 and ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy,
Policies DC14 and DC16 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and
the NPPF.
08.
No construction shall take place above damp proof course level until a
scheme for the provision and maintenance of signs within the development to inform
walkers of the presence and vulnerability of the Arcot Hall Site of Special Scientific
Interest has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved prior to the occupation of
any dwelling hereby permitted, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect Arcot Hall Grasslands and Ponds SSSI and conserve protected
species and their habitat in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policies SS1, SS3 and ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy,
Policies DC14 and DC16 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and
the NPPF.
09.
Prior to construction above damp-proof course level, a scheme for the
provision of integrated bird box or bat box/roosting features at a ratio of one per
dwelling shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
The scheme shall detail the location, height, orientation, numbers and specification
of bird/bat nesting/roosting provision. This should include swift bricks in groups of
four to six on suitable gable ends. Thereafter the approved scheme shall be
implemented in full.

Page 34

Reason: To conserve and enhance local biodiversity in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policies SS1, SS3 and ENV1 of the
Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policies DC1 and DC16 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
10.
Notwithstanding the landscape overview and masterplan drawings referenced
in condition 4 above, no development shall take place above damp proof course
level until a revised site-wide Landscape Masterplan has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Landscape Masterplan shall
address the following issues:
a) The quantum and location of different typologies of green spaces across the site;
b) Clearly identify existing trees, hedgerows, habitats, ponds and other natural
features proposed for retention;
c) Principles for the layout, design, landscaping and boundary treatment of each of
these areas;
d) Principles for public access to and through these areas (taking account of
condition 45 Sensitive Lighting Scheme);
e) Principles for lighting of these areas;
f) Retention of the key hedgerows (2,000m) and trees (52) including tree T83 (Ash)
as identified in OS Ecology Ground Based Tree Risk Assessment 19185 V1 (Draft)
dated March 2020
g) Hedgerows on the southern and eastern boundaries to be gapped with native
species and managed to the benefit of wildlife,
h) New native species hedgerow (1650m) and tree planting (227) and areas of native
scrub;
i) New areas of species-rich grassland within the site of at least 2.5ha in size and
creation of species-rich grassland buffers along hedgerows, totalling approx. 1ha.
The Landscape Masterplan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed with the local planning authority.
Reason: In the interests of amenity, ecology and public safety in accordance with
Policies CNP1 and CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policies SS1,
SS3 and ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policies DC1, DC16 and DC27 of
the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
11.
No development shall take place above damp roof course level within any
phase until full details of both hard and soft landscape works in respect of that phase
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These shall include details of all hard surfaces, planting plans, written specifications,
schedules of plants (noting species plant sizes and proposed number densities
where appropriate) in respect of that phase of development including the timing for
implementation thereof. The works shall be carried out as approved and in
accordance with the approved timetables.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity in accordance with
Policies CNP1 and CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policies SS1,
SS3 and ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policies DC1, DC16 and DC27 of
the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
12.
No development shall take place within any phase until a detailed Open
Space Management and Maintenance Scheme for the maintenance and

Page 35

management of all areas of open space within that phase has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be
implemented upon the occupation of the first residential unit of that particular phase
(or as may otherwise be approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority). Details to be submitted shall include;
a) Details of landscape management and maintenance plans
b) Details of planting, grass cutting, weeding and pruning
c) Inspection, repair and maintenance of all hard landscaping and structures
d) Management, monitoring and operational restrictions
e) Maintenance and planting replacement programme for the establishment period of
landscaping
f) Establish a procedure that would be implemented in the event of any tree (or item
of soft landscaping) being removed, uprooted/ destroyed or dying
The open space areas provided shall be retained for their intended purpose unless
otherwise is approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance and management of open space in
accordance with Policies CNP1 and CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan,
Policies SS1, SS3 and ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policies DC1, DC16
and DC27 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
13.
Prior to the commencement of development above damp proof course level, a
detailed survey and assessment of ground conditions that could affect the use and
quality of the playing fields (including drainage and topography) of the land proposed
in this application as playing fields shall be undertaken and the results submitted in
writing to the Local Planning Authority. Based on the results of this assessment, a
detailed scheme to ensure that the playing fields will be provided to an acceptable
standard (to be specified by Northumberland County Council) shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Sport
England. The scheme shall also include details of the layout and finishes of the
playing fields and a programme for delivery of the playing fields and ancillary
facilities (including access and parking areas). The scheme shall be carried out in full
accordance with the approved details and programme of delivery
Reason: To ensure that site surveys are undertaken for new playing fields and that
any ground condition constraints can be and are mitigated to ensure provision of an
adequate quality playing fields area in accordance with Policy CNP23 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC12 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF..
14.
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied unless and until the works
specified in the Remediation Statement approved in respect of condition 15 of
planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application
reference 20/01063/DISCON have been completed in accordance with the approved
scheme and a report validating the remediated site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the environment from contamination and to ensure that the site is
reclaimed to a standard appropriate for its approved use in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core

Page 36

Strategy, Policy DC21 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
15.
Upon completion of the remediation detailed in the Method Statement a report
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority that provides verification that the
required works regarding contamination have been carried out in accordance with
the approved Method Statement. Post remediation sampling and monitoring results
shall be included in the report to demonstrate that the required remediation has been
fully met. Future monitoring and reporting proposals shall be detailed in the report
which shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the environment from contamination and to ensure that the site is
reclaimed to a standard appropriate for its approved use in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core
Strategy, Policy DC21 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
16.
If during development contamination not previously considered is identified it
must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures
identified in the approved
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the environment from contamination and to ensure that the site is
reclaimed to a standard appropriate for its approved use in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core
Strategy, Policy DC21 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
17.
Development shall take place within each Phase in full accordance with the
scheme to protect the buildings within that Phase from gas emissions associated
with the former mine workings, in particular Stythe (or Black Damp) as approved in
respect of condition 18 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021
under application reference 20/01063/DISCON
Reason: In order to safeguard the development and/or the occupants thereof from
possible future gas emissions in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policy DC21 of
the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
18.
Throughout the construction period within each phase development shall take
place in accordance with a 'Dust Management Plan' to be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted 'Dust Management Plan'
must include a procedure for dealing with complaints about dust which would be
activated when justified dust complaints are received by the Local Planning
Authority. Monitoring
points should be approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Page 37

Reason; In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy,
Policy DC21 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
19.
Construction work and deliveries associated with the proposal shall only take
place between the hours of 7am to 7pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm on Saturdays
but shall not take place on Sundays or Bank Holidays unless otherwise approved in
advance and in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason; In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy SS3 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy,
Policy DC22 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
20.
No development shall take place above damp proof course level within each
Phase until details of all external facing and roofing materials to be used on
dwellings within that phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with Policies CNP3 and
CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
21.
No development shall take place above damp proof course level within each
Phase until details of the provision of refuse and recycling storage for each dwelling
within that Phase and a programme for their implementation have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter each Phase of
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details in
respect of that Phase unless otherwise is approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The refuse/recycling area should have a direct and level access from the
street to the dwelling and be capable of accommodating the appropriate
refuse/recycling.
Reason: In the interests of the provision of adequate refuse storage/collection
facilities and of general and visual amenities in accordance with Policies CNP3 and
CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
22.
Prior to the commencement of development above damp proof course level,
details of the location, design and landscaping of a communal recycling facility for
the scheme and a programme for its delivery shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter development shall be carried out
in accordance with the details and programme approved.
Reason: In the interest of providing adequate recycling facilities and visual amenity
in accordance with Policies CNP3 and CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood
Plan, Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
23.
The development shall be constructed in accordance with the levels details
approved in respect of condition 24 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5
March 2021 under application reference 20/01063/DISCON

Page 38

Reason: In order to safeguard the character and appearance of the area in
accordance with Policies CNP3 and CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan,
Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
24.
Provision shall be made available for the secure parking of bicycles the details
of which shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the development must be carried out in accordance with those
approved detail. All of the above shall apply unless any variation is approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To establish cycling as an alternative form of transport and ensure
adequate storage facilities for bicycles within the scheme in accordance with Policy
CNP14 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
25.
Prior to the commencement of development in respect of the sports and
recreation facilities hereby permitted a scheme for the provision of secure covered
bicycle storage for non-residential uses to be provided on the site shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include
details of the location, number and design of secure bicycle parking and shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme prior to initial use of the nonresidential uses.
Reason: To establish cycling as an alternative form of transport and ensure
adequate storage facilities for bicycles within the scheme in accordance with Policy
CNP14 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
26.
No development shall take place above damp proof course level in each
phase until a scheme (including a programme for implementation) for the inclusion of
energy from renewable energy sources has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as
approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To achieve environmental benefits in accordance with Policy CNP8 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC30 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
27.
Prior to the commencement of any part of the development above damp proof
course level, full details of all substations (including a programme for
implementation) shall be submitted to approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The submitted details shall include details of materials, design and
locations. Thereafter the development shall be carried out In full accordance with the
approved details and timetable.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policies CNP3 and
CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
28.
Construction traffic movements throughout the construction period within each
phase of the development shall be in full accordance with a Traffic Management
Plan to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
Traffic Management Plan shall include routing, schedule and timing of movements,

Page 39

details of escorts for abnormal loads, temporary warning signage, banksman/escort
details and proposed mitigating measures.
Reason: In order to achieve a satisfactory form of development having regard to
highway safety and general amenity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
29.
Construction work throughout the construction period within each phase of the
development shall be undertaken in full accordance with a Construction Method
Statement to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. That Statement shall provide for:
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
b) delivery times and loading and uploading of plant and materials;
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding;
e) the erection and screening of any compound and welfare facilities;
f) wheel washing facilities;
g) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
h) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from the construction works.
i) no tree felling or vegetation clearance shall be undertaken between 1st March and
31st August unless a suitably qualified ecologist has first confirmed that no bird's
nests that are being built or are in use, eggs or dependent young will be damaged or
destroyed.
j) all works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the guidance set out in
BS5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction:
Recommendations British Standards Institution, 2012.
k) all works on site will adhere to the Pollution Prevention Guidance for Businesses
provided by DEFRA and the Environment Agency. For further information follow the
link: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pollution-prevention-for-buisnesses
l) a visual inspection for any squirrel dreys will be carried out not more than 3 months
before the start of tree works. If there are any potential dreys and other signs such
as feeding signs, the dreys will need to be observed for occupancy then dismantled
by hand before felling.
m) all trenches and excavations deeper than 0.30m left open overnight should have
a ramp installed at an angle of no more than 45 degrees to allow the escape of
entrapped mammals.
Reason: In order to achieve a satisfactory form of development having regard to
highway safety, general amenity and biodiversity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of
the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policies DC11 and DC16 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
30.
Turning facilities for all vehicles, including abnormal loads, must be provided
within the confines of the application site for the full duration of the construction
period to enable all vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward direction at
all times.
Reason: In order to achieve a satisfactory form of development having regard to
highway safety and general amenity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.

Page 40

31.
The proposed four-leg roundabout at the junction of Beacon Lane/U9551 shall
be constructed in accordance with the details approved in respect of condition 32 of
planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application
reference 20/01063/DISCON and in accordance with an implementation timetable to
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
32.
A crossing point over Beacon Lane (close to the entrance into the
development) shall be constructed in accordance with the details approved in
respect of condition 33 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021
under application reference 20/01063/DISCON and in accordance with an
implementation timetable to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
33.
All highway works to Beacon Lane shall be constructed in accordance with
the design details approved in respect of condition 34 of planning permission
B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application reference
20/01063/DISCON and in accordance with an implementation timetable to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
34.
All carriageways, footways, cycleways and street lighting serving the
development (the street works) are to be constructed and installed to adoptable
standards. All of the above shall apply unless any variation is approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
35.
Prior to the commencement of development above damp proof course level,
details of the location and design of bus stops within the development shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority along with a
programme for their implementation. Thereafter those bus stops shall be provided in
accordance with the agreed details and programme of delivery.
Reason: To ensure provision of adequate bus stop facilities within the scheme in
accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11
of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.

Page 41

36.
Each car parking space approved through this permission shall be
constructed as approved, and drained, surfaced and made available for use before
any unit of accommodation or use that it serves is occupied.
Reason: To provide for appropriate and secure car parking in accordance with Policy
CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
37.
In respect of the carrying out of the development hereby permitted the public
footpath through the site (300/119) shall be protected in full accordance with the
scheme approved in respect of condition 38 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL
on the 5 March 2021 under application reference 20/01063/DISCON and the
footpath must remain open at all times with no restrictions, notwithstanding
temporary diversions agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to protect a public footpath ensuring connectivity and safety in
accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11
of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
38.
A programme of archaeological work is required. The archaeological scheme
shall comprise two stages of work. Each stage shall be completed and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority before it can be discharged and shall be
undertaken in full accordance with the Written Scheme of Investigation approved in
respect of condition 39 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021
under application reference 20/01063/DISCON
a) The archaeological recording scheme required by the brief must be completed in
accordance with the approved scheme of investigation.
b)The programme of analysis, reporting, publishing and archiving if required by the
brief must be completed in accordance with the approved written scheme of
investigation.
Reason: To safeguard archaeological heritage assets in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy ENV2 of the Blyth Valley Core
Strategy, Policy DC26 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
39.
Any works to be carried out within the 'Exclusion Area' identified on Fig 1 of
the archaeological mitigation brief (NC ref BV3/5; 11262 dated 27/09/10) submitted
with application reference B/08/00465/FUL shall be undertaken in full accordance
with an Archaeological Method Statement to be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. No intrusive groundworks (including surface
drainage facilities or service trenches) shall be undertaken below the level of the
present ground surface. All of the above shall apply unless any variation is approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard archaeological heritage assets in accordance with Policy
CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy ENV2 of the Blyth Valley Core
Strategy, Policy DC26 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the
NPPF.
40.
The Surface water disposal scheme in respect of the development hereby
permitted shall be implemented and subsequently maintained, in full accordance

Page 42

with the details approved in respect of condition 41 of planning permission
B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application reference
20/01063/DISCON and shall be constructed in accordance with an implementation
timetable to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of
surface water from the site in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC19 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies
DPD and the NPPF.
41.
The provision, implementation and maintenance of the two attenuation ponds
(SuDS) and associated network shall be undertaken in full accordance with the
details approved in respect of condition 42 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL
on the 5 March 2021 under application reference 20/01063/DISCON and these
ponds shall be constructed in accordance with a timetable to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the water environment and reduce the risk of flooding from
surface water drainage in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC19 of the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies
DPD and the NPPF.
42.
Surface water and foul sewage drainage in respect of the development
hereby permitted shall be constructed in full accordance with the details approved in
respect of condition 43 of planning permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021
under application reference 20/01063/DISCON
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a
satisfactory means of surface water disposal and to ensure that the development is
provided with a satisfactory means of drainage in accordance with Policy CNP1 of
the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC19 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
43.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in full accordance with
coal mining legacy mitigation details approved in respect of condition 44 of planning
permission B/08/00465/FUL on the 5 March 2021 under application reference
20/01063/DISCON
Reason: The application site has been the subject to past coal mining and any
implications arising from this need to be considered from the outset in order to
ensure the safety and stability of the proposed development in accordance with
Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC21 of the Blyth
Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
44.
Prior to the felling or works to trees having low and moderate potential for
roosting bats, as identified in 'Ground Based Tree Risk Assessment, OS Ecology
Ltd, March 2020' and 'Bat Survey, OS Ecology Ltd, October 2020', a detailed method
statement for the works to minimise the risk of harm to bats shall be submitted to and
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.' Thereafter work shall be undertaken
in full accordance with that approved method statement.
Reason: To avoid harm to a species protected under the Wildlife & Countryside Act
1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2007

Page 43

(as amended) in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood
Plan, Policy ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policy DC16 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
45.
Prior to construction above damp-proof course level in any phase, a sensitive
lighting scheme for all areas of that phase shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The lighting scheme shall:
a) Be designed in consultation with the project ecologist and follow guidance set out
in Institution of Lighting Professionals (2018) Advice note 08/18
(https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/).
b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of
appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications) so that it can be
clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent bats using their
territory (e.g., for foraging and commuting) or having access to their breeding sites
and resting places.
All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications agreed.
Reason: To prevent disturbance and harm to a European protected species (bats)
and conserve local biodiversity in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the Cramlington
Neighbourhood Plan, Policy ENV1 of the Blyth Valley Core Strategy, Policy DC16 of
the Blyth Valley Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
46.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 as amended (or any order revoking and reenacting that Order with or without modification), no additional window or other
opening shall be made in the following elevations of the dwellings specified on the
following plots unless an application for planning permission in that behalf is first
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority – 9 west, 19
west, 20 south, 24 east, 31 east, 32 south, 35 south, 36 north, 53 north, 64 south, 69
north, 70 north, 75 east, 87 west, 88 north, 105 east, 112 east, 136 west, 141 north,
150 north, 151 north, 156 south, 159 south, 164 north, 165 north, 170 south, 178
north, 179 north, 195 west, 215 north, 219 south, 220 south east, 221 south east,
225 south, 230 north, 233 west, 236 west, 238 east, 245 east, 248 west, 255 north,
261 north, 264 south, 271 south, 272 north, 274 north, 275 south, 278 east, 285
east, 291 east, 294 south, 296 north, 299 west, 300 west, 301 east, 313 west, 316
east, 330 south, 331 east, 336 west, 337 east, 340 west, 348 south east, 351 east,
353 east, K011 north, K014 south, K017 north, K018 west, K029 east, K034 south,
K035 south, K036 north, K038 south, K048 west, K060 east, K061 west, K062 north,
K066 north, K067 south, K070 east, K074 north, K078 north, K081 south, K087
south, K088 north, K093 north, K097 west, K103 west, K106 east, K107 west, K108
east, K116 west, K122 east, K126 north, K132 north, K156 north, K159 east, K166
north or south, K167 north, K170 west, K173 west, K194 north, K195 south, K206
north, K209 east, K214 north, K224 south, K241 south, K242 east, K246 west, K247
south, K251 south, K254 south, K261 east, K275 west, K281 south, K299 south,
K302 west, K323 west, K353 west or K362 west.
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenity of the occupiers of adjacent
properties and in accordance with Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD.

Page 44

47.
Means of enclosure to dwellings in each phase shall be provided prior to the
first occupation of those dwellings in full accordance with details to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policies CNP3 and
CNP8 of the Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC27 of the Blyth Valley
Development Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
48.
The pedestrian/cycle access from the application site to Langdale Drive shall
at all times following its substantial completion incorporate bollards to prevent use of
that access by vehicular traffic other than emergency service vehicles with the
location and specification of such bollards being in full accordance with details to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy CNP1 of the
Cramlington Neighbourhood Plan, Policy DC11 of the Blyth Valley Development
Control Policies DPD and the NPPF.
49.
Development shall not commence in respect of the surface water drainage
scheme hereby permitted unless and until a bird hazard assessment and
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the surface water drainage scheme shall be
constructed and managed in full accordance with those approved details.
Reason: In the interests of aviation safety in accordance with the NPPF.
Date of Report: 16/07/21
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 21/00842/VAREIA

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Appeal Update Report
Date: August 2021
Planning Appeals
Report of the Director of Planning
Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle

Purpose of report
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals. This is a monthly
report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee
areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.

Recommendations
To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have
been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Link to Corporate Plan
This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021
where identified within individual planning applications and appeals.

Key issues
Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual
issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which
are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions.

Page 47

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions
Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted)
Reference No

Proposal and main planning considerations

Award of
costs?

20/02920/FUL

Extensions to roof including hip to gable extension
and full width flat roofed dormer – 5 Dilston Avenue,
Hexham

No

Main issues: proposals would not be in keeping with
the character of the building or the surrounding area
and would be detrimental to the visual amenity of the
area.
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation:
Refuse
20/02872/FUL

Retrospective application for detached granny annex
(amended description 17/11/20) - Moresby, Main
Road, Stocksfield

No –
claim
refused

Main issues: the use of render results in harm to the
character and appearance of the property, the
surrounding area and the setting of a listed building.
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation:
Refuse

Planning Appeals Split Decision
Reference No

Proposal and main planning considerations

Award of
costs?

None

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused)
Reference No

Proposal and main planning considerations

19/04938/FUL

Resubmission of approved planning application
No
17/02932/FUL Erection of new building comprising of
12 self-contained 1 bedroom apartments (use class
C3) for specialised independent supported living with
associated external works and car parking – land
between 86-90, Front Street East, Bedlington
Main issues: appeal against non-determination due

Page 48

Award of
costs?

to invalid application (no fee paid).
Appeal against non-determination
20/03046/FUL

Flat roof dormer to rear of property – 41 George
Street, Amble

No

Main issues: the proposal would significantly detract
from the character and appearance of the dwelling
and the conservation area.
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation:
Refuse
20/01649/FUL

Constuction of 1no. 4 bed dwelling to be used as
primary residence. Unit to be 1.5 storey in height –
land north west of The Granary, Tughall Steads,
Chathill

No –
claim
refused

Main issues: layout results in a harmful impact on
the character and rural setting of Tughall, and new
track and access would create an urbanising effect
to the rural setting.
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation:
Refuse
20/01045/FUL

Barn conversion for holiday accommodation
No –
including three new build elements, a long lean-to to claim
the long barn to the North of the site for corridor
refused
access, a middle single storey link between the north
and south of the site, and the replacement of the hay
barn for a sports hall facility (amended description) land west of Townhead Farm, Tow House
Main issues: design and impact on the nondesignated heritage asset; insufficient information
relating to drainage; and insufficient information
relating to ground gas protection and water supply.
Appeal against non-determination

18/03435/VARYCO

Variation of condition 27 (noise) pursuant to planning
permission 16/04622/FUL for amendments to
boundary treatment plan – land at former Bates
Colliery site, Cowpen, Blyth
Main issues: applicant has been unable to provide a
long-term management and maintenance plan for
the required acoustic fencing to specific plots and
protection from noise to occupiers cannot be
secured.
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation:
Refuse

Page 49

No

Planning Casework Unit Referrals
Reference No

Proposal and main planning considerations

Award of
costs?

None

Planning Appeals Received
Appeals Received
Reference No

Description and address

Appeal start date
and decision
level

18/02239/FUL

Redevelopment of the former Marley Tiles
Factory to provide a residential development
of 105 houses (Use Class C3) with
associated access, parking, landscaping and
infrastructure (AMENDED description and
site layout) - Marley Tile Factory, Lead Lane,
Newlands

27 January 2021
Committee
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Approve

Main issues: isolated development in the
open countryside; inappropriate development
in the Green Belt by virtue of causing
substantial harm to the openness of the
Green Belt and very special circumstances
have not been demonstrated to outweigh
harm; and the design of the development
would be out of keeping with the character
and appearance of the locality and does not
deliver an appropriate form of sustainable
design or development for the site.
20/01794/VARYCO

Retrospective: Variation of condition 2
(Approved Plans) pursuant to planning
permission 17/00229/FUL to allow
amendments made during construction –
land north and east of Horsley Banks Farm,
Horsley
Main issues: inappropriate development in
the Green Belt and very special
circumstances do not exist to outweigh harm
to the Green Belt as well as harm to the
character of the area and amenity of
residents.

Page 50

23 April 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

20/02548/FUL

Construction of dwelling – land and building
east of Ovington House, Ovington
Main issues: development in the open
countryside; inappropriate development in
the Green Belt; harm to the setting of a nondesignated heritage asset and the Ovington
Conservation Area; and a Section 106
agreement has not been completed in
respect of a contribution to sport and play.

20/03861/VARYCO

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans)
pursuant to planning permission
20/00297/FUL in order to allow new wall to
be moved closer to boundary wall to
underpin and give support. Also French
doors have 3/4 height windows on either side
and single window in extension will be
replaced using existing 2no. sash windows
and mullions – Ashleigh, 26 Cade Hill Road,
Stocksfield

19 May 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

26 May 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

Main issues: extension would be out of scale
and character with the existing property and
would have a harmful impact on the
character and appearance of the site and
surrounding area; and detrimental impact
upon the residential amenity of the
neighbouring property.
20/02479/FUL

Retrospective: Change of use from
agricultural and construction of wooden shed
- land north-west of 2 Linnels Cottages,
Hexham
Main issues: inappropriate development in
the Green Belt; visually intrusive and harmful
impact upon the rural and open character of
the site and surrounding area; and harmful
impacts upon the amenity of neighbouring
residents.

19/04883/FUL

Proposed demolition of existing garage to be
replaced with two-storey dwellinghouse - 2
Sandridge, Newbiggin-by-the-Sea
Main issues: harm to non-designated and
designated heritage assets and the identified
harm would not be outweighed by public
benefits.

21/00574/ADE

Retrospective: Advertisement consent for
installation of 3no. signs that have been in
place for over 2 years - ADS Caravan
Storage, Remscheid Way, Jubilee Industrial
Estate, Ashington
Main issues: Sign 1 has an unacceptable

Page 51

26 May 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

27 May 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse
1 June 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Split Decision

impact on the visual amenity of the site and
surrounding area due to its siting and scale.
20/04234/FUL

Proposed two storey side extension and
demolition of existing garage – 23 Ladbroke
Street, Amble
Main issues: adverse impact on the street
scene and the character and appearance of
the conservation area due to scale, height
and mass forward of the building line.

20/04134/FUL

20/00923/FUL

1 June 2021

Main issues: alongside existing extensions
the proposal would result in a
disproportionate addition over and above the
scale of the original building and would be
inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

Erection of four no. dwellinghouses (C3 use)
- land south of The Paddock,
Longframlington

4 June 2021

Certificate of Lawful Development of an
Existing Use of land as residential - land
south of 4 Station Cottages, Longhirst
Main issues: insufficient evidence to
conclude that the land has been used as
stated for a period in excess of 10 years.

20/00925/FUL

Outline permission for the construction of up
to 9no dwellings including access,
appearance, layout and scale – land northwest of Blue House Farm, Blue House Farm
Road, Netherton Colliery
Main issues: harm to setting of a designated
heritage asset; insufficient information in
respect of potential risk from ground gas; and
a section 106 agreement has not been
completed in respect of a contribution to the
ecology coastal mitigation scheme or off-site
sport and play provision.

21/00928/FUL

Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

New sunroom – Outwood, Riding Mill

Main issues: proposal fails to protect and
enhance the distinctive character of
Longframlington; incursion into the open
countryside; and insufficient information
regarding surface water drainage and flood
risk.
21/00069/CLEXIS

1 June 2021

Part first floor extension to existing bungalow
- 16 Lynwood Close, Darras Hall, Ponteland
Main issues: proportion, form, massing,
siting, height, size, scale and design fails to
be subordinate and respectful of the
character and appearance of the property

Page 52

Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

16 June 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse
30 June 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Refuse

7 July 2021
Delegated
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:

and its surroundings.

Refuse

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions
Enforcement Appeals Allowed
Reference No

Description and address

Award of
costs?

18/01344/ENDEVT

Bridgend Caravan Park, Wooler

No

Main issues: one Enforcement Notice appealed by
three parties in respect of operational development to
provide extra bases for residential static caravans with
associated services
18/00489/ENDEVT

Land at Moor Farm Estate, Station Road, Stannington

Yes

Main issues: unauthorised waste reclamation yard and
siting of multiple shipping containers

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed
Reference No

Description and address

None

Award of
costs?
No

Enforcement Appeals Received
Appeals Received
Reference No

Description and address

Appeal start date

18/00223/ENDEVT

Land to the West of Buildings Farm,
Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB

1 February 2021

Main issues: material change of use of the
land from agricultural for the siting of 4
caravans

Page 53

18/00223/ENDEVT

Land to the West of Buildings Farm,
Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB

1 February 2021

Main issues: material change of use of the
land for the siting of one caravan and the
erection of fencing in excess of 2 metres in
height

Inquiry and Hearing Dates
Reference No

Description and address

Inquiry/hearing
date and
decision level

19/00247/FUL

Construction of a publicly accessible
landmark, commissioned to commemorate
Queen Elizabeth II and the Commonwealth land at Cold Law, Kirkwhelpington

Inquiry date: 9
March 2021

Main issues: development in the open
countryside which fails to recognise the
intrinsic character and nature of the
countryside.
20/02247/FUL

Committee
Decision - Officer
Recommendation:
Approve

Erection of a rural worker’s dwelling – land
Virtual hearing
south of Middle Coldcoats Equestrian Centre, date: 28 July 2021
Milbourne
Delegated
Main issues: fails to demonstrate the need
Decision - Officer
for a rural worker’s dwelling in the open
Recommendation:
countryside; inappropriate development in
Refuse
the Green Belt and there are no very special
circumstances to outweigh harm; and fails to
address pollution concerns with potential to
affect protected species and failure to
demonstrate ecological enhancement.

Page 54

Implications
Policy

Decisions on appeals may affect future
interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews

Finance and value for money

There may be financial implications where costs are
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries
are arranged to determine appeals

Legal

It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine
appeals

Procurement

None

Human resources

None

Property

None

Equalities

Planning applications and appeals are considered
having regard to the Equality Act 2010

(Impact Assessment attached?)
❏ Yes
✓ No
❏ N/a
Risk assessment

None

Crime and disorder

As set out in individual reports and decisions

Customer consideration

None

Carbon reduction

Each application/appeal may have an impact on the
local environment and have been assessed
accordingly

Wards

All where relevant to application site relating to the
appeal

Background papers
Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report.

Report author and contact details
Elizabeth Sinnamon
Development Service Manager
01670 625542
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

S106 Agreements Update Report
June 2021
Report of the Executive Director of Regeneration, Commercial and Economy
Cabinet Member: Councillor Colin Horncastle

Purpose of report
For Members’ information to report the agreement monitoring and collection of s106
contributions in the planning process. This is a monthly report and relates to
agreements throughout Northumberland during the previous monthly period.

Recommendations
To note the contents of the report in respect of agreement monitoring and collection of
s106 contributions.

Link to Corporate Plan
This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 20182021.

Key issues
This month’s report provides details on new S106 agreements and unilateral
undertakings completed during the month of June and payment received in June 2021.
Also Contact details for the S106 team

Page 57

New Agreements
June
20/03155/FUL
20/03824/OUT
19/01223/FUL
21/00274/ful
20/02780/FUL
20/01210/ful
20/03856/REM
19/03476/FUL
20/01708/FUL

New Agreements completed
Land North of North Farm, Embleton, Alnwick,
Land to the rear of 10 Hillside Road, Belford,
Land at Athol House, Callerton Lane, Ponteland,
Eastfield House Corbridge
Land South and East of Crowden Hill Farm House, Ulgham
Land NW Doxford, Newhouses
Land South and West of White Hall Farm, Beacon Lane,
Cramlington,
Land at The Old Rectory, Rectory Road, Howick, Alnwick
Land north and east of Ashlynd House, Church Lane, Wark,

Contributions Received June 2021
Development
Gleeson Widdrington
Cramlington SWS Arcot
Ulgham
Alnwick
Doxford New Houses
Redeford
Lane End farm
Lane End farm
Tynedale Scout
Tynedale Scout

Awards Paid Out

Type of Contribution
Education
Sport
Coastal Mitigation Service
Coastal Mitigation Service
Coastal Mitigation Service
Coastal Mitigation Service
Sport
Play
Play
Sport

Project

June
None this month

Page 58

Amounts Received
£33,000
£73,000
£344
£600
£2410
£337
£362
£458
£1388
£788

Amount Paid

S106 Team
Email: S106@northumberland.gov.uk

Page 59

Implications
Policy

Section 106 obligations are in line with
policy unless other stated in individual
applications.

Finance and value for money

As stated on individual applications

Legal

Legal Services will be instructed to assist
with the preparation and monitoring of the
obligations

Procurement

None

Human resources

None

Property

None

Equalities

Each application will have regard to the
Equality Act 2010

(Impact Assessment attached?)
❏ Yes
✓ No
❏ N/a

Risk assessment

None

Crime and disorder

As set out in individual reports and
decisions

Customer consideration

None

Carbon reduction

As set out in individual reports and
decisions

Wards

All

Background papers
Planning applications and 106 Agreements

Report author and contact details
Elizabeth Sinnamon
Senior Planning Manager - Development Management
01670 625542
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk

Page 60

